

Directorate: National Water Resource Planning

Development of a Reconciliation Strategy for the Luvuvhu and Letaba Water Supply System

STUDY STEERING COMMITTEE - MEETING 4

Draft Minutes

DATE: Thursday, 21 November 2013

TIME: 09:00 - 13:20

VENUE: Tzaneen Country Lodge, Tzaneen

1.	WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION	ACTION
	The Chairperson and Study Manager, Mr Tendani Nditwani (Department of Water Affairs – DWA) welcomed all members to the fourth meeting of the Study Steering Committee (SSC) for the development of the Luvuvhu and Letaba Water Supply System Reconciliation Strategy (LLRS).	
	Mr Nditwani thanked all members of the SSC for their attendance and said that it is important that the institutions involved with water planning and key role players meet to discuss the reconciliation of water in this area.	
	He also announced that Mr Johan van Rooyen and Mr Peter van Niekerk have retired. Mr Ockie van den Berg (DWA) added that the DWA Regional Chief Director, Mr Alson Matukane has resigned and Ms Lucy Kobe was appointed in the position.	
	(All presentations presented at the meeting will be saved on the DWA web site. Visit the study website http://www.dwa.gov.za/Projects/Luvuvhu/default.aspx for more information.)	
2.	ATTENDANCE AND APOLOGIES	
	Appendix A provides a list of attendants and apologies received.	
3.	MEETING OBJECTIVES	
	Mr Nditwani reiterated the objectives of this study which are to address the growing water demand in the study area, identify serious water problems, identify resource development options, provide reconciliation interventions (structural and administrative/regulatory) and facilitate communication and strengthen the partnership between the DWA and key stakeholders.	
	He stated the objectives of the meeting and said that the preliminary Reconciliation Strategy focussing on options for the Letaba catchment that is based on the water balances will be presented today. At the next meeting, the options for the Luvuvhu will be presented.	
4.	ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA	
	The agenda was accepted with additions under item 13 – general.	

5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES	
	The minutes were approved without any changes.	
6.	MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MINUTES (SSC 3 ON 31 OCTOBER 2012)	
	There were no matters arising which were not covered by an item on the agenda.	
7.	STATUS AND RECAP SINCE THE PREVIOUS MEETING	
	Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWA) presented the current status of the study. He stated that all final reports are available on the study web site for members to review. He said it is expected that two further SSC meetings will be held in 2014 before the draft Reconciliation Strategy is presented at a public meeting.	
8.	PROGRESS ON STUDY TASKS	
8.1	Overview	
	Mr Manie Maré (Study Team) informed members of the progress made with the various tasks in the study and focussed the information provided on tasks completed and tasks still in progress. He said the study is on time and satisfactory progress is being made.	
8.2	Water Use: Irrigation and afforestation	
	Mr Francois Joubert (Schoeman en Vennote) presented the results of a study on the water use by irrigators and forestry in the study area. Summaries of irrigation areas (including source and representative crop values) and areas of afforestation were provided to the study team for further analysis and inclusion in models.	
	Discussion	
8.2a	Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water Users Association) wanted to know what exactly an "average crop" represents. Mr Joubert explained that in a specific area a variety of crops are planted (avocados, bananas, citrus, etc.) and that for modelling process each crop could not have been included thus one crop representing a weighted average was used.	
8.2b	Mr Eddie Riddell, KNP asked about the SAPWAT technology used and Mr Joubert responded that other technology exists now but that the DWA pricing strategy specifies that SAPWAT is to be used and through using the SAPWAT model over so many years the modelis well understood for its more conservative approach.	
8.2c	Mr Andre Venter (Letaba Water User Association) enquired what the white areas on the maps shown are representative of. Mr Joubert explained that those are non-irrigation areas – thus areas that were regarded not to impact on the water use for this study.	
8.2d	Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water Users Association) commented that there used to be a control system for afforestation and asked if that was reviewed. Mr Joubert said it was not reviewed and that only existing areas were used as data input.	
8.2e	Mr Dzaga Azwihangwisi (DWA) asked what impact will clamping on unlawful uses by DWA have on the study? Mr Joubert replied that this part of the study only looked at the validation of water use and not at verification. Mr Nditwani (DWA) added that a recommendation of the Reconciliation Strategy could be that unlawful use should be eradicated.	
8.2f	Mr Martinus Gouws (Department of Agriculture, Limpopo) commented that no irrigation could have been recorded in 1998 and 2005 on the government schemes and he asked if that was taken into account. Mr Joubert said that it was considered.	

8.3	Hydrological analysis	
	Mr Bennie Haasbroek provided an overview of the hydrology analysis for the Letaba and Luvuvhu catchments. His presentation informed members on the climatic conditions, the status of impoundments, water and land use, the gauging network, the calibration network and natural runoff distribution. His presentation was concluded with the following key points:	
	 Due to the limited rainfall and streamflow data in the East of the catchment, the hydrological data generated for those areas can only be seen as low confidence. 	
	 Although about 65% of the resulting Natural MAR in the Letaba catchment is calibrated, the majority of the flow calibrations are dependent on dam balances, which are inaccurate for low flows. 	
	 Vondo, Nsami, Damani, Nandoni and Modjadji Dams should be revisited once data is available to provide dam balances. It is very important to start capturing and storing the relevant data. 	
	 Basin wide dam surveys should be undertaken – the available information is very old or totally absent. 	
	• Continuous water use measurements should be done at Thabina, Damani, Vondo and at weirs in the Luvuvhu, Mutale and Shingwedzi.	
	 On Lower Groot Letaba if possible the Prieska Sluice should be repaired and measurements should resumed. 	
	Automate water use and flow measurements at major dams for accurate data.	
	Discussion	
8.3a	Mr Andre Venter (Letaba Water User Association) commented that in the presentation many uncertainties were alluded to with regards to unavailability of monitoring data. He suggested that the SSC members recommended that the necessary be done to ensure that monitoring is taking place to such a level that data can be gathered to sufficiently update the hydrology data with regular intervals. Mr Haasbroek commented that the monitoring equipment / structures were washed away during heavy floods and that since the last floods many structures have not yet been replaced/repaired.	
8.3b	Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water Users Association) asked who is responsible for collecting rainfall data. Mr Haasbroek explained that rainfall data are obtained from the SA Weather Services that is part of the Department of Environmental Affairs and that the DWA has rainfall stations at some of their dams. He said that regrettably more rainfall data was available in 1912 than today.	
8.3c	Mr Archinton Thobejane (DWA) said that the issue of monitoring was raised internally at the DWA and a recommendation was made that a study be conducted to review all monitoring stations / equipment at dams, in rivers and for recording rainfall. He added that the Minister asked for infrastructure plans from officials and that the invitation poses a good opportunity to rectify the monitoring situation. Mr Haasbroek commented that user needs should be included with the planning for improved monitoring.	
8.3d	Mr Jakkie Venter (DWA) invited Mr Haasbroek and the team to approach him for information pertaining to the Tzaneen Dam. He said he may also have more updated information with regards to the Albasini canal system. He cautioned the study team about the Albasini system's allocations.	
8.3e	Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water Users Association) asked where the information presented on groundwater comes from. Mr Francois Joubert (Schoeman and Vennote) responded that it is a combination of registration data and surveys conducted that ended in 2000. He commented that it was found that users only rely on groundwater if other sources are depleted – e.g. during droughts.	
8.3f	Mr Eddie Rindell, KNP asked if an indication can be provided of the natural run-off trend? Mr Haasbroek said that the gauges on the Letaba River were repaired and that the next set of data will be more accurate. He agreed to meet with Mr Ridell to discuss his question in detail as Mr Rindell offered some more information.	
8.3g	Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water Users Association) asked whether with the construction of Nwamitwa Dam a weir / gauge will not be constructed up and down stream of the Dam. Mr Ockie van den Berg responded positively.	

PRELIMINARY RECONCILIATION STRATEGY Mr Pieter van Rooyen (Study Team) presented possible options and different scenarios which will become part of the preliminary reconciliation strategy. His presentation focussed on the preliminary scenarios for the Letaba catchment. In conclusion he said that the following still needs to be done before a final draft Reconciliation Strategy can be compiled for review by the public: Incorporate comments from SSC members on the information provided thus far. Consider information from the water use validation and verification study as an estimate of possible unlawful water use. Undertake system yield risk analysis and refine balances. Compare development options economically by determining the Unit Reference Values. Develop a preliminary Reconciliation Strategy for Luvuvhu River System. Coordination with the Classification Study. Discussion Mr Andre Venter (Letaba Water Users Association) wanted to know if Scenario 1 as presented 9a provides for the water required for the water use licenses applied for from the Ebenezer Dam? Mr Pieter van Rooyen (WRP) said no, it does not allow for that. 9b Ms Mushai Ramusetheli (Polokwane Local Municipality) asked whether the scenarios presented allow for the authorisation of the applied water user licenses for Polokwane. The application for the water use licences was submitted by Lepelle Nothern Water for resources from the Letaba system. Mr Pieter van Rooyen (WRP) explained that the scenarios presented do not include water allocated that was requested as part of the water use licenses which was applied for. He said that the study team cannot recommend that the said license applications be approved as there is not sufficient water in the system and water is required from Ebenezer dam to cascade down to the Tzaneen Dam. If water is transferred for the Polokwane requirements, a great deficit will be experienced. 9с Mr HP Chauke (Shingwedzi sub-catchment and Letaba catchment forums) asked if there is sufficient allocation for growth in the mining / industry sector? Mr Pieter van Rooven (WRP) responded that growth of mines are not included, however sufficient growth was included for the category domestic use as most of the new mining developments will obtain their water through the municipalities. 9d Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water Users Association) enquired why the provision for Ecological Water Requirements (EWRs) was left out on certain of the tributaries. Mr Pieter van Rooyen (WRP) replied that on most of the tributaries the REC EWR are equal to the present day state and that it is on the main stream that the differences are shown. Mr Louis van Rooyen stated that in his mind all rivers should contribute to the EWRs. Mr Pieter van Rooyen said that the next round of scenarios will show a split between the different requirements, including the requirements for EWRs. 9e Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water Users Association) commented that the irrigators have already imposed a stringent operating rule to ensure assurance of supply at about 55%. He said there is no water for any further exports as the system cannot even provide for the needs in its catchment area. If irrigators want higher assurances, they will have smaller allocations. 9f Mr Isaac Nyatlo (DWA) asked if the water allocated for urban equals water for domestic use. Mr Pieter van Rooven (WRP) responded that it is equal and that the full allocation to the irrigation sector was used in the scenarios and he stated that if abstractions are made in excess of the allocations, the available yield will be reduced much sooner and any transfers from the system will also result in a deficit much sooner. He mentioned that all transfer allocations in and out of the system that is currently taking place were considered in the development of the scenarios. He commented that the proposed construction of Nwamitwa Dam provides for sufficient water to allocate for EWRs (Ecological Water Requirements) in the system.

LLRS – SSC 4 - Draft Minutes

9g	Mr Archinton Thobejane (DWA) asked whether the information presented at this meeting and eventually the Reconciliation Strategy will feed into the Reconciliation Strategy for the Olifants River system? Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWA) responded that under the item 12 GENERAL it will be explained that the Letaba and Olifants will become one Water Management Area and he added that the information of these Reconciliation Strategies will be linked.	
9h	Mr Andre Venter (Letaba Water Users Association) asked if the yield reflected in the presentations for the Ebenezer Dam is part of the new hydrology results. Mr Bennie Haasbroek said yes, it is indeed part of the new results which were obtained from abstraction details since 1990 and it seems that the self-imposed operating rule does not influence the firm yield of the dam.	
9i	Mr HP Chauke (Shingwedzi sub-catchment and Letaba catchment forums) commented on the spelling of the word Nwamitwa. Mr Ockie van den Berg (DWA) responded that the Department was made aware of a different spelling of the name at the Project Steering Committee meeting held on 31 October 2013 for the Water Resources Classification project for the Letaba catchment; however the authenticity of the suggestion is now being investigated. Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWA) commented that the name has been used as is throughout the studies for the Groot Letaba Water Project (GLEWAP) and Mr Van den Berg added that the Chief who was involved in the GLEWAP study is a Member of Parliament who has never commented on the spelling of the name. Mr Louis van Rooyen commented that a final name for the proposed Nwamitwa Dam will still be chosen and Mr Van den Berg added that the name will be changed once it has been constructed.	
9j	Mr Dzaga Azwihangwisi (DWA) said that the allocations for Dap Naude Dam are different than reflected in the presentation and that the study team should contact him for further discussions.	
10.	LINKAGES WITH OTHER PROCESSES OR INITIATIVES IN THE STUDY AREAS	
10.1	Classification of water resources and the determination of Resource Quality Objectives in the Letaba catchment	
	Mr Rufus Nengovhela (DWA) provided an overview on the status of the classification of water resources and the determination of Resource Quality Objectives in the Letaba catchment. He reminded the members that a Project Steering Committee meeting for the classification study was held on 31 October 2013 where feedback was provided on the Ecological Water Requirements which have been determined, as well as the operational scenarios which were presented. He explained that the operational scenarios were determined by work of this SSC committee and emphasised the linkage between the different DWA studies in the Letaba catchment.	
10.2	Groot Letaba River Water Development Project (GLeWaP)	
	Mr Ockie van den Berg (DWA) stated that the Minister of Environmental and Water Affairs approved the implementation of the Groot Letaba Water Development Project (GLeWaP) and a notice in accordance with Section 110 of the National Water Act declaring the Minister's intent to implement the GLeWaP was gazetted on 21 December 2012. The purpose of the project is:	
	 To meet the projected growing primary water requirements to a 20 year planning horizon at an acceptable assurance of supply in parts of the Mopani District Municipality, and specifically the Greater Tzaneen and Greater Letaba Local Municipalities. 	
	 To prevent further degradation of the riverine ecosystem by implementing the recently signed-off preliminary Reserve determined in compliance with the National Water Act. 	
	 To minimize further lowering of the assurance of availability of water supplies to the irrigation sector for the existing development. 	
	 To make water available for the establishment of resource-poor farmers in the irrigated agriculture sector. 	

The GLeWaP consists of the following infrastructure components: The raising of the existing Tzaneen Dam by 3m to improve the assurance of supply; A new major storage dam on the Groot Letaba River just downstream of the Nwanedzi River confluence, at the site known as Nwamitwa on Janetsi Farm 463LT (Nwamitwa Dam). Development of bulk potable water supply infrastructure mainly to serve rural communities without adequate water supplies. It is envisaged that the first water will be stored in Nwamitwa Dam by 2019. 10.3 Verification and validation Mr Andries Munzhedzi (DWA) gave an overview of the background of the project to verify and validate water use in the Letaba and Luvuvhu catchment. He stated progress made thus far with the study as follows: It was decided to complete the Validation and Verification for the top 600 users for irrigation and the top 313 users for SFRA (Stream Flow Reducing Activities) before the contract with a professional service provider ends at the end of 2013. 80% of the registered volume for irrigation is used by 600 water users. 80% of the registered volume SFRA users are used by 313 water users. He said that user responses are few and that provides many challenges towards finalising the information for the study. The remaining 20% of the registered volume must still be recalculated, the Existing Lawful Use be determined and the section 35 process completed. **Discussion** Mr Andre Venter (Letaba Water Users Association) commented that the contract to the Professional Service Provider ends at the end of 2013 and he said that with the amount of information outstanding the process cannot be completed by the end of 2013. Mr Andries Munzhedzi responded that a submission was made to the DWA Head Office and some feedback should be received soon. He concluded that due to the challenges experienced the contract will not be completed by the end of 2013. 10.4 **Continuation of the Olifants River Reconciliation Strategy** Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWA) gave an overview of the progress made with the maintenance of the Reconciliation Strategy for the Olifants River. He said a strategy was developed and completed in 2012 and is currently in its first phase of implementation and maintenance. The linkages with the Letaba Luvuvhu study were highlighted. 11. SSC TERMS OF REFERENCE, COMMUNICATION AND MEMBERSHIP Members of the SSC were invited to suggest changes to the terms of reference of the SSC and to introduce new members that could be invited to become involved. 12. **GENERAL** 12.1 Catchment Management Agency (CMA) Mr Nditwani explained that the country was divided into 19 Water Management Areas (WMAs), but that the arrangement has changed and that 9 WMAs are proposed. With this new arrangement the Luvuvhu catchment will become part of the Limpopo catchment to form a WMA and the Letaba catchment will become part of the Olifants catchment to form a WMA.

40.0	Building of the Water Bullion	
12.2	Revision of the Water Policy A draft new Water Policy was published (Government Notice 888 of 2013, in Government Gazette no 36798 dated 20 August 2013) for comment and response from the Minister of Environment and Water Affairs is awaited. The revised draft policy, amongst other, does not allow for water trading between users. The draft policy can be viewed at: http://www.dwa.gov.za/Documents/NWPR.pdf . The objective with the review process is to combine the National Water Act and Water Services Act into one, so that the Department of Water Affairs can manage from source to tap and from tap to source.	
12.2	National Water Resources Strategy (NWRS)	
	The second and supplementary version of the National Water Resources Strategy (NWRS) was published and is available on the DWA web site	
12.3	Pricing of water	
	Pricing of water is under review and announcements on a new process can be expected soon.	
12.4	Operating Rules for the Letaba catchment will be revisited next year. Existing rules will be reviewed and where there are no rules, new arrangements will be suggested. The process will allow for the public to be engaged and feedback will be provided to the members of the SSC.	
	Discussion	
	Mr HP Chauke (Shingwedzi sub-catchment and Letaba catchment forums) appealed for arrangements to transport those who would like to attend the meeting but that do not have transport. Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWA) said that due to economic constraints payment for transport is a challenge. He added that the study team rely on the municipalities and members of the SSC to ensure that they represent stakeholders and that the discussions on the SSC filter through to those that are not able to attend the meetings.	
13.	DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING	
	The next SSC meeting will be taking place in May 2014. A suggested date will be circulated. All members agreed that the next SSC meeting should again be held at Tzaneen Country Lodge as the venue is centrally located.	
14.	WAY FORWARD AND CLOSURE	
	Mr Nditwani ended the proceedings by providing a recap of what was discussed during the meeting. He said that the study team will circulate documentation on a preliminary reconciliation strategy for the Luvuvhu during the first quarter of 2014. He thanked all members on behalf of the DWA for their attendance and contributions towards meeting the objectives of the study.	

Appendix A: Attendnace

Mr Dzaga Azwihangwisi TEL 012 336 8299

Hydrological Engineer Department of Water Affairs

PRETORIA

Email: dzagaa@dwa.gov.za

 Mr Flip Bierman
 TEL (015) 309-0084

 Chairman
 FAX (015) 309 0083

 Tzaneen Irrigation Board/ Westfalia
 CELL 083 627 6845

Tzaneen Irrigation Board/ Westfalia CELL 083 627 6845 CELL 083 417 9557

Email: flipb@westfalia.co.za

Mr HP Chauke Cell 072 349 7429

Shingwedzi Sub-Catchment

Email: hlenganiphineas@gmail.com

Mr Jafter Chauke Cell 072 224 38422

Ecologist

Department of Economic Development, Environment

and Tourism

Email: chaukeJ@ledet.gov.za

 Mnr Dries Enslin
 TEL
 (015) 307-2725

 CEO
 FAX
 (086) 630 5629

 April Lataba
 CEU
 070 404 6937

Agri Letaba CELL 079 494 6927 Postnet Suite 387, Privaatsak X 4019

TZANEEN 0850

Email: info @agrilimpopo.co.za
Email 2: driesenslin @gmail.com

Mr Hannes Enslin CELL 078 802 2234

Merensky

Email: hannese@merensky.co.za

 Mnr Martinus Gouws
 TEL
 (015) 291 1551

 Manager
 FAX (015) 295 5003/8754

Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries CELL 082 955 3996
Private Bag X9487 CELL 082 955 3996
082 900 2490

POLOKWANE 0700

Email: gouwsmj@agric.limpopo.gov.za

Email: nicntlu@gmail.com

Mr Bennie Haasbroek	TEL	(012) 991 0113
Hydrologist	CELL	082 578 2640

Hydrosol Consulting

Email: bennie @hydrosol.co.za

Mr Witek Jezewski	TEL	(012) 336 8160
Deputy Chief Engineer: Water Services Planning and	FAX	(012) 336 8295
Information	CELL	082 412 4737
Department of Water Affairs	CELL	082 809 5609

Private Bag X313 PRETORIA 0001

Email: JezewskiW@dwa.gov.za

Mr Francois Joubert	TEL	012 252 0458/9
Director	FAX	012 252 1120
Schoeman & Vennote Consulting Engineers	CELL	082 771 7412

PO Box 2471 BRITS 0250

Email: francois@landuse.co.za

Mrs Anelle Lotter TEL (012) 667-4860
Public Participation Practitioner CELL 082 804 5890
Jones & Wagener (Pty) Ltd

PO Box 1434 RIVONIA 2128

EMAIL: anelle @jaws.co.za

Mr Donald Mabada TEL 015 290 1402
Deputy Director: Water Resource Management FAX 086 692 1035
Department of Water Affairs CELL 083 633 6631

Private Bag X9506 POLOKWANE 0700

Email: mabadah@dwa.gov.za
Email: tcl@dwaf.gov.za

 Mr M Mahwasane
 TEL (015) 960-2000

 Vhembe District Municipality
 FAX (015) 962 4020

 Private Bag X5066
 CELL 083 256 6657

THOHOYĂNDOU 0950

mahwasanem@vhembe.gov.za

LLRS – SSC 4 - Draft Minutes

Email:

Mr Levy Majadibodu Plant Superintendent Lepelle Northern Water

Email: Imajadibodu@lepelle.co.za Email: levym@lepelle.co.za

 Mr Sunday Makhuvele
 TEL
 015 290 1369

 Department of Water Affairs
 FAX
 015 307 6868

 Private Bag X9506
 CELL
 082 805 3764

 POLOKWANE 0700
 CELL
 082 805 3764

Email: makhuveles@dwa.gov.za

Mr Eric Makondo Cell 076 5717780

Secretary

Shingnedzi Catchment Forum

Email: memakondo@gmail.com

Mr Henry Maluleke TEL (012) 336 68309

Scientist

Department of Water Affairs

RDM

Email: Malulekeh @dwa.gov.za

 Mr Manie Maré
 TEL (012) 346 3496

 WRP Consulting Engineers (Pty) Ltd
 FAX (012) 346 9956

 P O Box 1522
 CELL 082 326 9378

BROOKLYN SQUARE 0075

Email: maniem@wrp.co.za

Mr Meshack MasindiMain015 295 9300Specialist ScientistFAX015 295 5018Department of Economic Development, EnvironmentCELL082 412 6673

and Tourism P O Box 217

POLOKWANE NORTH 0750

Email: masindimm@ledet.gov.za

Ms Shirley Mathe TEL 012 444 3847
Department of Mineral Resources FAX 012 320 6786

Private Bag X59 PRETORIA 0001

Email: shirley.mathe@dmr.gov.za

Mr T.S. Mbedzi Cell 072 442 8166

LLRS - SSC 4 - Draft Minutes

TEL (015) 307-9246 Mr William Molokomme Director FAX (015) 307-9419 Greater Letaba Local Municipality CELL 079 872 4192 Infrastructure Development P O Box 36 MODJADJISKLOOF 0835 Email: william@glm.gov.za Mr Vuledzani Muthelo CELL 083 791 1479 Scientist Department of Water Affairs RDM: SWRR Private Bag X313 PRETORIA 0001 muthelov@dwa.gov.za Email: Mr M.A. Muwzhedzi Main 015 306 7320 Deputy Director Cell 082 809 2160 Department of Water Affairs munzhedzi@dwa.gov.za Email: TEL 012 336 6707 FAX 012 336-6712 Ms Shane Naidoo Director: RDM - WRC Department of Water Affairs CELL 082 806 5339 Private Bag X313 PRETORIA 0001 Email: NaidooShane@dwa.gov.za Mr Tendani Nditwani TEL 012 336 8189 Acting Director: National Water Resource Planning FAX 012 336 8295 Department of Water Affairs CELL 082 888 5113 Private Bag X313 PRETORIĂ 0001 NditwaniT@dwa.gov.za Email: Ms Tshilidzi Nelwamondo TEL (015) 254-5304 Department of Cooperative Governance and FAX (015) 295-4701 Traditional Affiars CELL 083 358 2670 P O Box 2671 LEBOWAKGOMO 0737

Mr Rufus Nengovhela

Email:

TEL (012) 336 7886/7854

LLRS - SSC 4 - Draft Minutes

nelwamondot@coghsta.limpopo.gov.za

Directorate: RDM FAX
Department of Water Affairs CELL

Private Bag X313 PRETORIA 0001

Email: NengovhelaR@dwa.gov.za

Mr Malose Ngoepe Main 012 336 6967

(086) 587-3978

084 738 7910

Department of Water Affairs WRPS: Systems Analysis Private Bag X313 PRETORIA 0001

Email: ngoepem@dwa.gov.za

mboneni.nkosi@dmr.gov.za

mahlorecharlotte@yahoo.com

Mr Mboneni Nkosi Main 012 444 3790

Department of Mineral Resources

Email:

Email:

M.C Nkwashu Cell 083 691 9003

Greater Tzaneen Municipality

 Mr Isaac Nyatlo
 TEL 012 336 7582

 Scientist Manager
 CELL 082 805 6384

Department of Water Affairs
Wrps
P O Box 15239
FLORA PARK 0699

Email: nyatloi@dwa.gov.za

Mr Solomon Radzilani Main 012 846-8573
Assistant Director: DAFF - WUID Fax 012 846 8576

Assistant Director: DAFF - WUID Fax 012 846 8576
Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries

Email: solomonr@daff.gov.za

Ms Nthabiseng Ramagoshi TEL 012 846-8601

Technician: DAFF - WUID Fax 012 846 8576
Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries

EMAIL: NthabisengR@daff.gov.za

Ms Mushayi Ramusetheli Assistant Manager Polokwane Local Municipality Water and Sanitation

Email: mushair@polokwane.gov.za

LLRS - SSC 4 - Draft Minutes

Mr Eddie Riddell
Water Resources Manager
SANPARKS
Conservation Services

Email: edriddell@gmail.com

Kutama Rotondwa Main 012 336 8070
Ground Water Tranee Cell 083 624 7352
Department of Water Affairs

Email: KutamaR@dwa.gov.za

Mr Archinton ThobejaneTEL012 336 7869Department of Water AffairsFAX012 336 8577Directorate: Hydrological EngineeringCELL082 902 4218Private Bag X313

PRETORIA 0001

Email: thobejanea@dwaf.gov.za

 Mr Ockie van den Berg
 TEL
 012 336 8613

 Chief Engineer: Options Analysis (North)
 FAX
 012 336 7399

 Department of Water Affairs
 CELL
 082 809 2011

Private Bag X313 PRETORIA 0001

Email: VandenBergO@dwa.gov.za

 Mr Louis van Rooyen
 TEL
 015 345 1817

 Chairman
 FAX
 015 345 1783

 Letaba Water Users Association
 CELL
 083 627 6007

 PO Box 70
 CELL
 083 627 6007

LETSITELE 0885

Email: ljvanrooyen@mweb.co.za
Email: info@agriletaba.co.za

 Mr Pieter van Rooyen
 TEL (012) 346 3496

 Director
 FAX (012) 346 9956

 WRP Consulting Engineers (Pty) Ltd
 CELL 082 321 3446

P O Box 1522 BROOKLYN SQUARE 0075

Email: pieterv@wrp.co.za

Mr Antonie van Staden CELL 082 576 6355

Invirocor V&V PRETORIA

Email: avs @limpro.co.za

LLRS - SSC 4 - Draft Minutes

Mr Gustav van Veijeren Vice Chairman Letaba Water Use Association P O Box 299 LETSITELE 0885

Email: grvv@mweb.co.za

Mr Philé van Zyl Additional Member Sand River Water Users Forum/Bertie van Zyl (Pty) Ltd P O Box 1000

MOOKETSI 0825

Email: Phile @zz2.co.za

Mr Andre Venter Executive Officer Letaba Water Users Association PO Box 1220 TZANEEN 0850

Email: lwgv@absamail.co.za

Mr Jakkie Venter Area Manager: Limpopo Province Department of Water Affairs Private Bag X4012 TZANEEN 0850

Email: venterj@dwa.gov.za

Mr Pieter Viljoen Department of Water Affairs Directorate: Water Resource Planning Systems Private Bag X313 PRETORIA 0001

Email: viljoenp2 @dwa.gov.za

Apology

FAX (015) 386 8753

TEL 015 395 8212

FAX 015 395 2092

CELL 083 627 8528

TEL 015 307 2651

FAX 015 307 2651

CELL 082 680 7000

TEL (015) 307 3627/8600

TEL (012) 336 7514

(086) 620-6472

082 808 0497

FAX

TEL (012) 336 7043

FAX (012) 392 1453

082 804 3002

CELL

CELL

(015) 307 3823

082 808 5822

FAX

CELL

083 271 1114

CELL

Paul Herbst
Directorate: Water use Efficiency
Department of Water Affairs
Private Bag X313
PRETORIA 0001

Email: HerbstP@dwa.gov.za

LLRS – SSC 4 - Draft Minutes

14

 Celiwe Ntuli
 TEL
 012 336 7618

 Scientific Manager
 FAX
 012 336 7044

 Department of Water Affairs
 CELL
 082 885 1942

 Private Bag X313
 CELL
 082 885 1942

PRETORIA 0001

EMAIL: ntulic @dwa.gov.za

Gustav van Veijeren FAX (015) 386 8753
Vice Chairman CELL 083 271 1114
Letaba Water Use Association

P O Box 299 LETSITELE 0885

Email: grvv@mweb.co.za

Jacques Venter TEL 013 735 3546
South African National Parks FAX 013 735 3544
Private Bag X1021

PHALABORWA 1390

Email: jacques.venter@sanparks.org